NACAA

National Association of
County Agricultural Agents

N\
/.;l(,' ,\‘,\\: 4
(fltrlzl;f}f,,

National Association of County Agricultural Agents
November 2, 2006 Conference Call Minutes

ACHONSTEKEN ...ttt e et e e st e e snbe e e enreeesnneeeenes
(072 | I8 (o o] {0 [ TSR
SARE FEllOWS PrOgram.........cooiiiiiiiiecie ettt
County AQENT IMAGEZINE. .......cooiiieeeiei ettt e e e e e sneeesnseeesnneas
FaCility FEE REFUNG.......ooeieee e
(000 [T o] il =1 o ox J TSRS
Public Relationsand Ag Issues Committee Name Change.........ccoocveeevieeeiieeenieenns
JCEP Regiond Leadership Workshop........cooceioiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e
LAY g1 (= g =T o= o FO RSP RPR
Electronic Mailing List Changes.........c.ueiiiiiiiiiiieciiee e
Pre-approvd/payment for airlinereServations...........cooveeeiieeeeiieessiee e
(070] 011010101 0110 1 o] 0 1S TSR
ONEr BUSINESS ..ottt sttt sttt e st e s st e e e snae e e s nneeennneas

Actions Taken

Chuck Schwartau moved that we not refund the facilities fee unless it was a mistake on
registration, motion was seconded and passed. Henry voted nay

Henry Dorough moved to adopt the Code of Ethics with the suggestions offered by Gary
Hall. The motion was seconded by Michele Hebert and the motion passed.

Call to order

President Chudk Otte called the conference call meeting to order at 3:00 pm EST.
Members present were: Chudk Otte, Fred Miller, Rick Gibson, Leon Church, Chudk
Schwartau, Henry Dorough,James Devillier, Stan Moore, Michde Hebert, Gary Hall,
and Scott Hawbaker.

SARE Fellows Program

Rick Gibson, Vice President discussed the SARE Fellows Program and stated he had an
interesting experience attending the SARE meeting and watching how they do busness.
Theprindpleinvestigaor issuewas addressed, Rick felt tha would bea major concern
butit was resolved by the appointment of Jm Freebum as our contact person. Chudk
Otte asked aboutwhether Kim was going ge&t him names to appoint to the committee.
Brad Brummondfrom ND isaname tha has been suggested. We will need oneperson
from each region. Thefirst SARE Fellows Program semina will bein Arizona The
2007fundsfrom SARE will be approximately $40,000 as spon®rship or dondionto
NACAA for this program.



County Agent Magazine

Scott Hawbaker reported that thelatest edition of the County Agent magazinewas at the
printer at the time of this conference call should be sent out to the membership the
following week.

Facility Fee Refund

Chudk Otte asked Chudk Schwartau where we were on thefinances with the 2006
AM/PIC. We are near to close out with Ohio and Kentucky. Chudk Schwartau reported
tha we still need to do some bookkesping and pay some late check requests (i.e.
Scholarship Fund) He further reported tha we should belooking at arounda $15000
profit. Chud Otte asked for theboadsfeelingsregarding thefacilities fee refund. Chudk
Schwartau stated hefelt we would be setting a bad precedent if we refund He further
stated that registrants mightfeel they will get it back anyway so they will look else where
forlodging Chudk S. stated we should do an education job so our members undestand
why we chargethefee and why it isimportant. Fred Miller agreed with Chudk and felt
we should not make therefund Fred stated we will mog likely need to have afacilities
feein North Carolina Fred further stated that we need to stand on wha we said we were
goingto do. Henry Doroughstated he agreed with the need for afacilities fee and agreed
that we notrefundthis year fees. But also stated he origindly didn®like facilities fee
until heundestoodtheneed. It isimportant to educate our membership as to why we
have them. Scott Hawbaker asked Gary Hall if it was appropriate to make anegaive
motion. Gary nated tha motionsare madeto changethe statusquo. Chudk Otte noted
tha amotionwas made at pog boad tha we notrefundunless a mistake was made on
theregistration, this motion was pogponel to alater time. Henry asked wha we planned
to dowith thefacilitiesfee if notrefundel. Chudk stated it goesto thegenera fundas
does other registration fees. Henry asked further do we have money set asidefor an
AM/PIC failure. Chuck Schwartau stated we have around$100000in areserve fund
Fred noted tha we aso have an event insurance pdicy to protect our failure. Scott
Hawbaker respondel tha no thisinsurance policy isfor catastrophic events. It does not
protect usfrom low registration. Chudk Otte asked Henry if hehad a suggestion asto
wha to do with thismoney that is nat refunded. Henry suggested we putit into a
contingency fundto cover NACAA if thereisamaor failure of an AM/PIC. Scott asked
Gary Hall to clarify the $10Q000reserve; isit considered theannud meeting reserve.
Gary agreed tha tha isits purpose, but not specifically stated as such. Chudk Otte would
like the boad to consder this fundand how much more is needed. Henry and Michde
Hebert stated tha the assodation needs to putinto writing the pumpos of the contingency
fundfor any shortage or failure of the AM/PIC. It was further suggested tha a
percentage of the profit gointo the contingency fundaswell. Chuck Schwartau moved
that we not refund the facilities fee unless it was a mistake on registration, motion was
seconded and passed. Henry voted nay. Chuk stated tha he wanted to have further
discussion on the issue of the contingency/reserve fundat winter boad. Thefisca
committee will begiven this task.

Code of Ethics

Chudk Otte noted the changes tha were suggested to the codeof ethics and had been sent
viaemail to theboad. Thisemail is attached asitem A to these minutes. Gary Hall had
aso madesuggestions Changes were madeto thefirst sentence andto the Third
statement and Sixth these changes were made to more appropriately represent today@



extenson professiond. Henry Dorough moved to adopt the Code of Ethics with the
suggestions offered by Gary Hall. The motion was seconded by Michele Hebert and the
motion passed.

Public Relations and Ag Issues Committee Name Change

Rick Gibson regretted to report that he has nothing new to report from this committee.
Chudk Otte noted tha we then will nottake any action at thistime. Since this name
changeinformation was needed by November 1 in order for the changeto appear in the
Awardsedition we need to wait onthisissue Rick will talk with the committee to lighta
fire to seeif we can get this accomplished this coming year.

JCEP Regional Leadership Workshop

Chudk Otte noted tha as we get closer to these workshops he and Scott will be getting
togeher to limit number of roons the assodation will reserve and therefore have to pay
for.

Winter Board

Rick Gibson reported tha the Counal Charsand hewill becominginto Grand Rapids
on Tuesday the 12". Meetingswith them and Rick will begin that evening. Chudk
Schwartau and Paul Wigley will need to comein early aswell.

Electronic Mailing List Changes

Chudk Otte noted tha we have changad the way we access the electronic mailing lists.
Stan Moore stated that themailing list seemed to work ok for him when hetried the new
system. He also noted tha hewould like to see who heis sending the messageto rather
than showing that it had been sent as a blind copy. Fred Miller expressed concern that we
don®want to have folks forward our email with our addresses to the other person. Henry
Doroughwas suppotive and suggests that we let JohnDorne go ahead with the secure
emailinglist. Michde Hebert stated that mailing listed worked on her Netscape system.
Chudk Otte will talk to Johnto discuss any further needswe have, hefurther stated that
Johnhas been doing avery goodjob for usand isthinking outside the box

Pre-approval/payment for airline reservations

Chudk Otte asked do we need to have a promissory note for payment of airline
reservationsbefore actud travel. Fred Miller, Henry Doroughand Michdle Hebert all
agreed we don®need to have another sheet of pgper; we should be professiond enough
to reemburse theassodation. Gary Hall asked if this promissory note allows for advance
payment, Chudk Otte answered yes, buttheticket had to be purchased beforehand so it is
notreally an advance, jus an early payment prior to travel usngthevoude method
Fred Miller nated we may need to visit the current voudher so tha we can indudesome
statement of promissory ontherevised voudhe. Stan Moore suggested that we ssmply
use the current voucdher and but putinto the directionsstatement that reimbursement can
obtained prior to actud travel on purchased airlineticket. Chudk summarized tha it
appears we agree tha we do not need a promissory note buttha we need to look at the
voucdhe and add some typeof statement to it that coversthisissue Chudk Schwartau
and Paul Wigley should work with JohnDorner and deerminewha can be changed on
thevoudhe to address this concern.



Communications

Chudk Otte had asked Mickey Cummingsto look at communicationswithin the
assodation. Thisissuewas broughtto our attention as a result of the Futuring Committee
report. Mickey met via conference call with theVice Directors and Coundal Chatrs.
Mickey had emailed the boad with three suggestions Thisreport is attached asitem B.
Suggestion# 1 BFred Miller asked who is gang to beresponsble for deermining key
times, hefurther noted tha thistypeof thing is already in the committee handbook
Chudk Schwartau agreed that much of thisis already in place butwe jug need to
reinforce the protocol for al levels of committee work. By sending outthe checklist
coming from the handbookwould reinforce theresponsbility tha each level must
complete. He also stated tha state contacts change often and it isa problem. Rick agreed
with wha had been said, heis currently trying to get the committee char lists; hefurther
stated we are trying to get ahold of amovingtarget. Fred Miller noted tha because of
thisrapid changewe need to have states involved in updding these lists in addition to the
Vice President. Chudk Otte noted tha no decisionsneed to bemadeat thistime. He
stressed that we can® communicate too much.

Other Business

Chudk Otte noted tha Mickey Cummingscan not judgeOutstanding Y oungFarmer
program as hewill begoneout of thecounty. Chuck asked Fred Miller wha hewould
bedoingin early February. Thereisaneed to have someonerepresent usin Phoenix.
Chudk and Fred will talk.

Henry Doroughbstated that Floridaasked aboutthe suggestionsthey made at Pre-Board,
they are expecting usto take actions Theboad forwarded these suggestionsto the
Coundls. Chudk will visit with Rick Gibson as to the status of these and will bringup at
Winter Board.

Stan Moore asked Chudk Schwartau aboutsetting the budge for Michigan AM/PIC;
Mickey has sent the proposd budgé to Fiscal Committee, a conference call will hdd
aroundThankggiving. Fred Miller thanked Michigan and Stan for their hdp with gifts
for thedonos. These giftswill show off the Michigan produds and theupaoming
AM/PIC.

Leon Church asked the Regiond Directors for hdp in contacting states to obtain the
current list of state officers. Chudk Otte asked Leon to send outthelist of statestha have
not respondel to therespective regiond directors.

We will nothave a December conference call aswe will have our Winter Board Meeting.
Chudk wished usall aHappy Thanksgiving.

Respectfully submitted,

Leon J. Church, NACAA Secretary



